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Independent Auditor's Report 

Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type 
activities, and each major fund of the Village of Hodge, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village of Hodge's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. 

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the Village of 
Hodge, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 



Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 7-12 and pages 47-49 be presented 
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, 
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Village of Hodge's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and 
Other Payments to Agency Head is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. 

The Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 2, 2018 
on our consideration of the Village of Hodge's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Village of Hodge's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Jonesboro, Louisiana 
November 2, 2018 
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Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
As of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 

As Management of the Village of Hodge, we offer readers of the Village of Hodge's financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Village of Hodge as of and for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2018. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with 
the Village's basic financial statements and supplementary information provided in this report in assessing 
the efficiency and effectiveness of our stewardship of public resources. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Village of Hodge's basic financial 
statements. The Village's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also 
contains other supplemental information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide 
readers with a broad view of the Village of Hodge's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Village of Hodge assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position 
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Village of Hodge is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during 
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving 
rise to the change occurs, regardless of timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are 
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (for 
example, earned but unused vacation leave). 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 15-16 of this report. 

Fund financial statements. The fund financial statements focus on current available resources and are 
organized and operated on the basis of funds, each of which is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a 
self-balancing set of accounts established for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain 
objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. All of the funds of the Village 
can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide 
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 
spendable resources, as well as on balances left at year-end that are nonspendable, restricted, committed, 
assigned, or unassigned. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing 
requirements. 



Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
As of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, 
it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented 
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental 
fund balance sheet and governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental 
activities. 

The Village of Hodge maintains one individual governmental fund. Information as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2018, is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, which is considered 
to be a major fund. 

The Village of Hodge adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund. A budgetary comparison 
statement is provided for the major funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 18-21 of this report. 

Proprietary funds. The Village maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report 
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The 
Village uses its enterprise funds to account for its sewer and water and solid waste operations. 

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities that function in a manner similar to commercial 
enterprises. Proprietary fund financial statements typically provide a more detailed presentation of the 
information reported in the business-type activities portion of the government-wide financial statements. The 
proprietary funds financial statements provide separate information for all of the enterprise funds, which are 
considered to be major funds of the Village. 

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 22-24 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the 
financial statements can be found on pages 26-45 of this report. 

Supplemental information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report 
also presents required supplemental information concerning the Village of Hodge's compliance with budgets 
for its major funds. Also, other supplemental information schedules are included in the report. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

-The assets ofthe Village exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2018 by $1,792,581. 

-The Village's net position increased by $11,064. The net position of the governmental activities increased 
by $134,477, and the net position of the business-type activities decreased by $123,413. 

-At June 30, 2018, the Village's governmental funds reported total ending fund balances of $286,100, an 
increase of $190,123, from June 30, 2017. An amount of $165,698 is available for spending at the Village's 
discretion (unassigned fund balance) and an amount of $120,404 is assigned. 



Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
As of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Summary of Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 
Assets 

Cash and equivalents $ 200,216 $ 31,850 $ 168,504 $ 269,070 $ 368,720 $ 300,920 
Accounts receivable 123,449 153,523 7,240 4,590 130,689 158,113 
Cash and equivalents - restticted - - 52,288 51,249 52,288 51,249 
Capital assets (net of accumulated 
depreciation) 677,375 733,983 689,510 716,050 1,366,885 1,450,033 
Capital assets (net of accumulated 
depreciation) 
Total Assets 1,001,040 919,356 917,542 1,040,959 1,918,582 1,960,315 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Pension 23,725 46,599 - - 23,725 46,599 
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 23,725 46,599 - - 23,725 46,599 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 34,791 80,671 1,463 2,127 36,254 82,798 
Payroll Liabilities 2,773 8,725 - - 2,773 8,725 
Due to HUOC - - 173 262 173 262 
Customer meter deposits - - 49,868 49,124 49,868 49,124 
Net pension liability 57,861 51,518 - - 57,861 51,518 

Total Liabilities 95,425 140,914 51,504 51,513 146,929 192,427 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Pension 2,939 56,786 - - 2,939 56,786 
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,939 56,786 - - 2,939 56,786 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 677,375 733,983 689,510 716,050 1,366,885 1,450,033 
Unrestticted 249,027 34,271 176,527 273,396 425,558 307,667 

Total Net Position $ 926,402 $ 768,254 $ 866,037 $ 989,446 $ 1,792,443 $ 1,757,700 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. 
At the close of the most recent fiscal year, assets of the Village of Hodge exceeded liabilities by $1,792,443. 
A significant portion (76%) of the Village of Hodge's net position reflects its investments in capital assets 
(e.g., land, building and improvements, and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation), less any related 
debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. These assets are not available for future spending. 



Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
As of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Summary of Change in Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total 
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 159,063 $ 194,281 $ 90,734 $ 53,086 $ 249,797 $ 247,367 
Taxes: 

Ad valorem tax 154,321 152,699 - - 154,321 152,699 
Franchise tax 2,469 2,239 - - 2,469 2,239 
Sales tax 419,510 433,181 - - 419,510 433,181 

Licenses and permits 21,142 24,631 - - 21,142 24,631 
Capital grant 16,698 30,681 2,115 - 18,813 30,681 
Operating grant 140,260 25,305 - - 140,260 25,305 
Intergov emm ental 26,698 29,727 - - 26,698 29,727 
Fines, forfeitures, and court 
costs 

113,028 100,014 - - 113,028 100,014 

Rent, royalty, and 
commission 

286 1,967 - - 286 1,967 

Interest earnings 100 77 313 222 413 299 
Miscellaneous 13,509 12,703 358 22,817 13,867 35,520 

Total revenues 1,067,084 1,007,505 93,520 76,125 1,160,604 1,083,630 

Expenses 
Current: 

General government 204,026 238,237 - - 204,026 238,237 
Public safety 

Police 238,800 233,851 - - 238,800 233,851 
Fire 34,038 44,703 - - 34,038 44,703 

Stteets 381,621 438,337 - - 381,621 438,337 
Sanitation - 11,644 - - 11,644 
Services to related party 122,936 137,496 - - 122,936 137,496 
Utility - - 170,001 122,721 170,001 122,721 

Total expenses 981,421 1,104,268 170,001 122,721 1,151,422 1,226,989 
Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over (under) 85,663 (96,763) (76,481) (46,596) 9,182 (143,359) 
expenses 
Other financing sources 
(uses) 

Gain (loss) on sale of fixed 
assets 

1,741 (5,993) 1,741 (5,993) 

Operating transfers 46,932 (20,475) (46,932) 20,475 - -
Total other financing 
sources (uses) 

48,673 (26,468) (46,932) 20,475 1,741 (5,993) Total other financing 
sources (uses) 

Change in net position 134,336 (123,231) (123,413) (26,121) 10,923 (149,352) 
Net position - June 30,2017 792,065 891,485 989,447 1,015,568 1,781,512 1,907,053 

Net position - June 30,2018 $ 926,401 $ 768,254 $ 866,034 $ 989,447 $ 1,792,435 $ 1,757,701 
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Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
As of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Governmental activities. The most significant revenues of the governmental activities are sales taxes (39%), 
ad valorem taxes (14%), charges for services, excluding fines and forfeitures (15%), and fines and forfeitures 
(11%). 

The highway and streets expenses are the most significant (39%) of all governmental activities expenses, 
followed by the public safety-police expenses (24%) and the general government expense (21%). 
Depreciation expense is included in these amounts. 

Governmental activities revenues increased by $59,579 in the current year as compared to the prior year. 
The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in grants, offset by a decrease in charges for services 
and sales tax. 

Governmental activities expenses decreased by $122,847 in the current year as compared to the prior year. 
The decrease was primarily attributable to a decrease in streets expenses and general government expenses. 

Business-type activities. The business-type activities net position decreased by $123,413, due to an increase 
inutility expenses. The business-type expenses exceeded the business-type revenues by $76,481. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE'S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the Village uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. The focus of the governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the financing 
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

Governmental funds. As of June 30, 2018, the combined governmental fund balances of $286,100 reflect an 
increase of $190,123 from June 30, 2017. An amount of $120,404 is assigned in the General Fund for use on 
street repairs, and an amount of $165,698 is unassigned, which is considered available for appropriation. 

The changes in the revenues and expenses of the governmental funds were described in the above 
Government-Wide Financial Analysis section. 

Proprietary funds. The Village's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the 
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

The Utility Fund's net position decreased by $123,413 in the current year. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

General Fund final actual revenues exceeded budgeted revenue by $264,069. Favorable variances included 
$33,028 in fines, forfeitures, and court costs, $85,963 for charges for services, and $140,260 in operating 
grants. General Fund final budgeted expenditures were more than actual expenditures by $13,279, due 
primarily to actual streets expenditures and services to related party expenditures being more than budgeted 
expenditures. 

11 



Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
As of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital assets. As of June 30, 2018, the Village of Hodge's investment in capital assets for its governmental 
activities totals $677,375 (net of accumulated depreciation), and its investment in capital assets for its 
business-type activities totals $689,510 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment includes land, 
buildings and improvements, furniture, and equipment. During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Village 
purchased assets totaling $63,445, including a phone system for the Village Hall, a server for the Village hall, 
a thermal imager and a gas fan for the fire department, three tasers for the police department, a zero-turn 
mower for the streets department, generators for Hodge Utility Operating Company, a water monitoring 
system for the water department, a truck and dump trailer for the water, sewer, and sanitation departments. 

Debt administration. At year ended June 30, 2018, the Village had $57,861 of long-term obligations. The 
long-term obligations consist entirely of net pension liability. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The fiscal year 2018-2019 budget is forecasted to provide $901,625 in revenues and $124,279 in estimated 
surplus to fund costs of $840,830. 

Capital outlay is budgeted in the amount of $62,000. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village of Hodge's finances for all 
those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in 
this report or request for additional financial information should be addressed to Mrs. Zip Schmidt, Village 
Clerk, 1711 Main Street, Hodge, Louisiana 71247. 

12 
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Statement A 

Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Statement of Net Position 
As of June 30, 2018 

Governmental Business-Type 
Total 

Activities Activities 
Total 

Assets 

Cash and equivalents $ 200,216 $ 168,504 $ 368,720 

Accounts receivable 123,449 7,240 130,689 

Cash and equivalents - restricted - 52,288 52,288 

Capital assets (net of accumulated 
depreciation) 

677,375 689,510 1,366,885 
Capital assets (net of accumulated 
depreciation) 

Total Assets 1,001,040 917,542 1,918,582 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Pension 23,725 - 23,725 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 23,725 _ 23,725 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 34,791 1,463 36,254 

Payroll liabilities 2,773 - 2,773 

Due to HUOC - 173 173 

Customer meter deposits - 49,868 49,868 

Net pension liability 57,861 - 57,861 

Total Liabilities 95,425 51,504 146,929 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Pension 2,939 - 2,939 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,939 _ 2,939 

Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets 677,375 689,510 1,366,885 

Unrestricted 249,027 176,527 425,554 

Total Net Position $ 926,402 $ 866,037 $ 1,792,439 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
15 



Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Statement B 

Statement of Activities 
For die Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Major Funds Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position 

Expenses 
Charges for 

Services 
Operating Grants 
and Contributions 

Capital Grants and 
Contributions 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities 

Total 

Functions/Prosrams 
Primary government 

Governmental activities 
General government 
Police 
Fire 
Highways and streets 
Services to related party 

$ 204,026 
238,800 
34,038 

381,621 
122,936 

$ 8,161 
113,028 

1,875 
149,026 

$ 7,500 

132,760 

$ 
3,815 
3,613 
9,270 

$ (188,365) 
(121,957) 

(30,425) 
(237,716) 

26,090 

$ $ (188,365) 
(121,957) 

(30,425) 
(237,716) 

26,090 
Total governmental 
activities 

Business-type activities 
Water and sewer 

981,421 272,090 140,260 16,698 (552,373) _ (552,373) Total governmental 
activities 

Business-type activities 
Water and sewer 170,001 90,734 2,115 (77,152) (77,152) 

Total primary government $ 1,151,422 $ 362,824 $ 140,260 $ 18,813 (552,373) (77,152) (629,525) 

General Revenues 
Taxes: 

Property taxes, levied for general purposes 
Sales taxes 
Franchise taxes 

Licenses 
Intergov emm ental 
Investment earnings 
Rent, royalties, and commissions 
Other revenue 
Gain (loss) on sale of fixed assets 
Operating transfers 

154,321 
419,510 

2,469 
21,142 
26,698 

100 
286 

13,509 
1,741 

46,932 

313 

358 

(46,932) 

154,321 
419,510 

2,469 
21,142 
26,698 

413 
286 

13,867 
1,741 

Total general revenues and transfers 686,708 (46,261) 640,447 
Change in net position 
Net position - June 30, 2017 (restated) 

134,335 
792,065 

(123,413) 
989,447 

10,922 
1,781,512 

Net position - June 30, 2018 $ 926,400 $ 866,034 $ 1,792,434 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
16 





Statement C 

Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 
As of June 30, 2018 

Governmental Funds 

Assets 
Cash and equivalents $ 200,216 

Accounts receivable 123,449 

Total Assets 323,665 

Liabilities & Fund Balances 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 34,791 

Payroll liabilities 2,773 

Total Liabilities 37,564 

Fund balances: 

Assigned, reported in: 

General fund 120,404 

Unassigned 165,698 

Total Fund Balances 286,102 

Total Liabilities & Fund Balances $ 323,666 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement D 

Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 
As of June 30, 2018 

Total Fund Balances at June 30, 2018 - Governmental Funds (Statement C) $ 286,102 

Total Net Position reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net 
Position (Statement A) are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, 
therfore, are not reported in governmental funds, net of depreciation. ' 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, 
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Net pension liability (57,861) 

Deferred outflows of resources 23,725 

Deferred inflows of resources (2,939) 

Net Position at June 30, 2018 $ 926,402 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
19 



Statement E 

Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

General Fund 

Revenues 
Taxes: 

Ad valorem tax 
Franchise tax 
Sales tax 

Licenses and permits 

Capital grant 
Intergovernmental: 

Operating grant 
Fire insurance rebate 
Police supplemental pay and witness fees 
Streets maintenance 

Fines, forfeitures, and court costs 
Rent, royalty, and commission 
Charges for services 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 

Police 

Fire 
Streets 
Services to related party 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 
Other financing sources (uses) 

Interest earnings 
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 
Operating transfers 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net changes in fund balances 

Fund balances - June 30, 2017 
Fund balances - June 30, 2018 

154,321 
2,469 

419,510 

21,142 

16,698 

140,260 
2,888 

21,200 

2,610 

113,028 

286 

159,063 
11,844 

1,065,319 

199,961 

220,872 

23,384 

323,447 

122,794 
33,511 

923,969 

141,350 

100 
1,741 

46,932 

48,773 

190,123 

95,977 
286,100 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
20 



Statement F 

Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Funds Balances to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Total net change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (Statement E) $ 190,125 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are 
different because: 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, 
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets capitalized over their 
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
capital outlay differs from depreciation for the period. 

Depreciation (90,119) 

Capital outlay 33,511 

Compensated absence expense increase 

Net pension liability increase 820 

Change in net position of governmental activities (Statement B) $ 134,337 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement G 

Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund 
As of June 30, 2018 

Utility Fund 

Assets 

Current Assets: 

Cash and equivalents 

Accounts receivable 

Due from other funds 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 

Cash and equivalents - restricted 

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 

Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Due to HUOC 

Due to other funds 

Total Current Liabilities 

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets 

Customer meter deposits 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

168,504 

7,240 

175,744 

52,288 

689,510 

741,798 

917,542 

1,463 

173 

1,636 

49,868 

51,504 

689,510 

176,527 

866,037 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement H 

Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position - Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Utility Fund 

Operating Revenues 

Water sales 

Sewer fees 

Sanitation fees 

Miscellaneous income 

Total operating revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Personnel services 

Supplies 

Utilities 

Repairs and maintenance 

Contractural services 

Miscellaneous 

Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Interest earnings 

Capital grant 

Gain (loss) on sale of fixed asset 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 

Income (loss) before transfers 

Transfers 

Change in net position 

Total Net Position - June 30, 2017 

Total Net Position - June 30, 2018 

35,312 

23,329 

32,093 

358 

91,092 

25,119 

19,255 

45,853 

19,247 

4,205 

(152) 

56,474 

170,001 

(78,909) 

313 

2,115 

2,428 

(76,481) 

(46,932) 

(123,413) 

989,447 

866,034 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement I 

Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Cash received from customers 

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 

Cash flows from non-capital financing 

Transfers to and from other funds 

Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 
Capital grant 

Acquisition of capital assets 

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and relaced financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Interest earnings 

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - June 30, 2017 

Cash and cash equivalents - June 30, 2018 

Reconciliation of operating income to net provided by operating activities 

Operating income 

Adjustments 

Depreciation 

Net changes in assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable 

Customers' security deposits 

Accounts payable 

Due to HUGO 

Net cash provided for (used for) operating activities 

Utility Fund 

90,750 

(115,843) 

(25,093) 

(46,932) 

(46,932) 

2,115 

(29,934) 

(27,819) 

313 

313 

(99,531) 

320,320 

220,789 

(78,908) 

56,474 

(2,650) 

744 

(664) 

(89) 

(25,093) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 

INTRODUCTION 

The Village of Hodge, Louisiana (Village), was incorporated January 31, 1928, under the provisions of the 
Lawrason Act. The Village operates under the Mayor-Board of Aldermen form of government with three 
aldermen. Services provided by the Village include police protection, fire protection, sanitation, services to 
others, and street maintenance. The Village also operates a water distribution system and sewer system for 
approximately 250 customers. The Village is located in Jackson Parish, Louisiana. 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying financial statements of the Village have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The Village applies all relevant 
GASB pronouncements, as applicable to governmental entities. Also, the Village's financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with the requirements of Louisiana R.S. 24:513, the Louisiana Municipal Audit and 
Accounting Guide and to the industry guide. Audits of State and Local Government Units, published by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

B. Reporting Entity 

GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, established criteria for determining the 
governmental reporting entity and component units that should be included within the reporting entity. 
Under provisions of this Statement, the Village is considered a primary government, since it is a general 
purpose local government that has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and is fiscally 
independent of other state or local governments. As used in GASB Statement No. 14, fiscally independent 
means that the Village may, without the approval or consent of another governmental entity, determine or 
modify its own budget, levy its own taxes or set rates or charges, and issue bonded debt. 

GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, establishes 
criteria for determining which, if any, component units should be considered part of the Village for 
financial reporting purposes. GASB Statement No. 61 provides additional criteria for classifying entities as 
component units. The basic criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is 
financial accountability, which includes: 

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and: 

i. The ability of the government to impose its will on that organization and/or 

ii. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial 
burdens on the government. 

2. Organizations for which the government does not appoint a voting majority but are fiscally dependent 
on the government and there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to 
impose specific financial burdens on, the government regardless of whether the organization has a 
separately elected governing board, a governing board appointed by a higher level of government, or a 
jointly appointed board. 
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Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be misleading if data of the 
organization is not included because of the nature or significance of the relationship. 

Based on the above criteria, no component units were identified for the Village of Hodge. 

C. Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The Village's government-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities. These statements present summaries of the governmental activities and the 
business-type activities for the Village. Fiduciary activities of the Village are not included in these 
statements. 

These statements are presented on an "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. Accordingly, all of the Village's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred 
inflows of resources, including capital assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying 
Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities presents changes in Net Position. Under the accrual 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are 
recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange or exchange-like 
transactions are recognized when the exchange occurs (regardless of when cash is received or disbursed). 
Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from nonexchange transactions are 
recognized in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions. 

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each 
function of the Village of Hodge's governmental activities. 

Program Revenues - Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities (Statement B) are derived 
directly from parties outside the Village's taxpayers or citizenry, including (a) fees and charges paid by the 
recipient for goods or services offered by the program, and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program; program revenues reduce the cost 
of the function to be financed from the Village's general revenues. 

Direct Expenses - The Village reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities 
(Statement B). Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Depreciation 
expense, which can be specifically identified by function, is included in the direct expenses of each 
function. 

Indirect Expenses - The Village reports all indirect expenses separately on the Statement of Activities 
(Statement B). Indirect expenses are those expenses that are not clearly identifiable with a function. 
Interest on long-term debt is considered an indirect expense. 

General revenues are taxes and other items that are not properly included among program revenues. The 
effect of interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial statements. 
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D. Fund Financial Statements 

The accounts of the Village of Hodge are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a 
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, fund equity, revenues, expenditures or expenses, as appropriate, additions, and deductions. Fund 
accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in 
demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of 
funds maintained is consistent with legal and managerial requirements. Funds of the Village are classified 
into two categories: governmental and proprietary. 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds. An accompanying schedule 
is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in fund balances and changes in fund balances as 
presented in these statements to the net position and changes in net position presented in the Government-
Wide financial statements. The Village has presented all major funds. 

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "current financial resources" measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, current liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources are included on the Balance Sheets. 
Amounts recorded as assets exclude capital assets and the acquisition of capital assets is treated as an 
expenditure. Long-term debts are reported as an other financing source, and repayment of long-term debt is 
reported as an expenditure. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
presents increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing 
uses) in fund balance. 

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which 
they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period. "Measurable" 
means the amount of the transaction can be determined, and "available" means collectible within the current 
period or soon thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Accordingly, revenues are recorded when 
received in cash and when collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded in the 
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general 
long-term debt, which are recognized when due. 

The Village of Hodge reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - The primary operating fund of the Village, the General Fund, accounts for all financial 
resources, except those required to be accounted for in other funds. The General Fund is available for any 
purpose provided it is expended or transferred in accordance with state and federal laws and according to 
Village policy. 

Revenues 

The governmental funds use the following practices in recording revenues: 

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, and charges for services. Fines 
and permit and license revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable 
until received in cash. 
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Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded as unrestricted grants-in-aid at the time of receipt or earlier 
if the susceptible-to-accrual criteria are met. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized when the 
qualifying expenditures have been incurred, all other grant requirements have been met, and the 
susceptible-to-accrual criteria have been met. 

Interest earnings are recorded when the investments have matured and the interest is available. 

Expenditures 

The governmental funds use the following practices in recording expenditures: 

Salaries are recorded as expenditures when earned by employees. 

Purchases of various operating supplies, etc. are recorded as expenditures when the related fund liability 
is incurred. 

Compensated absences are recognized as expenditures when leave is actually taken or when employees, 
or their heirs, are paid for accrued leave upon retirement or death. 

Principal and interest on long-term debt are recognized when due. 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

The governmental funds use the following practices in recording other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers between funds that are not expected to be repaid, sales of fixed assets, and long-term debt 
proceeds and payments, are accounted for as other financing sources (uses). These other financing 
sources (uses) are recognized at the time the underlying events occur. 

Proprietary Funds 

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this 
measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the 
balance sheet. Fund equity (net total position) is segregated into three components-net investment in 
capital assets, restricted net position, and unrestricted net position. Proprietary fund-type operating 
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total position. The proprietary 
funds use the accrual basis of accounting, where revenues are recognized in the period in which they are 
earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred, regardless of the 
timing of the related cash flows. 

The Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business enterprises where the costs (expenses including depreciation) of providing goods 
or services to the general public on a continuing basis are financed through user charges: or (b) where the 
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net 
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other 
purpose. 
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The Enterprise Fund of the Village of Hodge is the Water and Sewer Fund, which accounts for the 
operations of the waterworks and sewerage systems. The intent of the Village for these facilities is (a) that 
the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general public on a 
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges or (b) that the periodic 
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 

Revenues and Expenses 

Operating revenues in the proprietary fund are those that are generated from the primary operations of the 
fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses 
that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-operating 
expenses. 

E. Equity Classifications 

The Village of Hodge has implemented GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred 
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. 

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements and the Proprietary Fund Financial Statements, the 
difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources is classified as net position and reported in three components: 

Net investment in capital assets: This classification consists of capital assets including restricted capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, 
notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of these 
assets. 

Restricted net position: This classification consists of net position with constraints placed on its use either 
by external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, 
or law through constitutional provision or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted net position: Any other net position that does not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net 
investment in capital assets." 

When an expense is incurred for the purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are 
available, management applies unrestricted net position first, unless a determination is made to use 
restricted net position. The policy concerning which to apply first varies with the intended use and legal 
requirements. This decision is typically made by management at the incurrence of the expense. 

The Governmental Fund Financial Statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise 
a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the Village is bound to honor constraints on the 
specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The classifications 
used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows: 

Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in 
spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The Village did not 
have any nonspendable funds for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
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Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of the 
resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. The Village did not have any restricted funds for the year ended June 
30, 2018. 

Committed: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal action of the Board of Aldermen. These amounts cannot be used for any 
other purpose unless the Board of Aldermen removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type 
of action (ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were initially committed. This 
classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been 
specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. The Board typically 
establishes commitments through the adoption and amendment of the budget. The Village did not have 
any committed funds for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the Village's intent to be used for a 
specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the Board of 
Aldermen or through the Board delegating this responsibility to a body or official (Mayor) for specific 
purposes. This classification also includes the remaining positive fund balance for all governmental funds 
except for the General Fund. The Village has assigned funds of $120,404 foryear ended June 30, 2018. 

Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund. The Unassigned 
classification also includes negative residual fund balance of any other governmental fund that cannot be 
eliminated by offsetting of Assigned fund balance amounts. The Village has unassigned funds of 
$165,698 for year ended 06/30/18. 

The Village would typically use Restricted fund balances first, followed by Committed resources, and then 
Assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend 
Unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds. 

F. Budgets 

The Mayor prepares a proposed budget and submits it to the Board of Aldermen no later than fifteen days 
prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public 
notified that the proposed budget is available for public inspection. At the same time, a public hearing is 
called. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of the call for the 
hearing. After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize and 
implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of an ordinance prior to the commencement 
of the fiscal year for which the budget is being adopted. The budget ordinance is structured such that 
revenues are budgeted by source and appropriations are budgeted by department and by principal object of 
expenditure. The Board of Aldermen may revise or amend the budget at its discretion during legally 
convened sessions. Management may amend the budget only below the department level. The Village 
utilizes formal budgetary integration as a management control device for all funds. 

The 2017-2018 general fund budget was published in the official journal and made available for public 
inspection. A public hearing for the proposed budget was held on June 6, 2017, and the budget was 
adopted by the Board of Aldermen. There were no amendments made to the budget. 
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G. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, and money market accounts. 
Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits and those investments with original maturities of 90 
days or less. Under state law, the Village of Hodge may deposit funds in demand deposits in stock-owned 
federally insured depository institutions organized under the laws of the state of Louisiana or of any other 
state of the United States, or under the laws of the United States. The Village may invest in certificates and 
time deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having their principal 
offices in Louisiana. 

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with 
a maturity date of 90 days or less when purchased. 

Under state law, the Village may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, or certificates. Those with 
maturities of 90 days or less would be classified as cash equivalents and all other reported as investments. 

The Village reports restricted assets on the Statement of Net Position (Statement A), which includes 
restricted cash (customer deposits) that is collected by the Water and Sewer Department. 

H. Investments 

The Village of Hodge's investments comply with Louisiana Revised Statute 33:2955. Under state law, the 
Village may deposit funds with a fiscal agent organized under the laws of Louisiana, the laws of any other 
state in the union, or the laws of the United States. The Village may invest in United States bonds, treasury 
notes and bills, or government-backed agency securities or certificates, and time deposits of state banks 
organized under Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana. These deposits are 
classified as investments if their original maturities exceed 90 days. Investments are stated at fair value 
except for those which are permitted under GASB Statement No. 31 to use a different valuation 
measurement. 

In accordinance with paragraph 69 of GASB Statement No. 72, the Village reports at amortized cost money 
market investments and participating interest-bearing investment contracts that have a remaining maturity 
at the time of purchase of one year or less. Money market investments are short-term, highly liquid debt 
instruments that include U.S. Treasury obligations. 

I. Interfund Receivables and Payables 

Activity between funds that is representative of lending or borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end 
of the fiscal year are referred to as "due to/from other funds" on the fund financial statements balance 
sheets, as well as all other outstanding balances between funds. Any residual balances outstanding between 
the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial 
statements as "internal balances." 

J. Inventories 

Inventories of supplies in the Proprietary Fund are not material and are charged to operations as purchased. 
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K. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are recorded in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns of the government-wide financial statements, but are not reported in the governmental fund 
financial statements. Acquisitions of property and equipment are capitalized at historical cost or estimated 
cost if historical cost is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair 
market value at the date of donation. The Village maintains a threshold level of $1,000 or more for 
capitalizing capital assets. 

Improvements and replacements of property and equipment are capitalized. Maintenance and repairs that 
do not improve or extend the lives of property and equipment are charged to expense as incurred. When 
assets are sold or retired, their cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts 
and any gain or loss is reported in the Statement of Activities. 

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of each class of depreciable assets and is computed 
using the straight-line method. Depreciation is recorded as an expense in the Statement of Activities, with 
accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position. The estimated useful life for classes of 
assets are as follows: 

Buildings 40 years 
Water and Sewer Systems 10-40 years 
Machinery and Equipment 5-15 years 
Improvements other than Buildings 20 year 
Infrastructure - Asphalt Streets 20 years 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, general infrastructure capital assets consisting of streets, 
bridges, sidewalks, and drainage systems acquired before July 1, 2003, are excluded from capital assets. 

L. Deferred Outflows of Resources 

The Village reports decreases in net position that relate to future periods as deferred outflows of resources 
in a separate section of its government-wide and proprietary funds statements of net position. The Village 
reported $23,725 in deferred outflows of resources due to the net pension liability. 

M. Compensated Absences 

Employees earn either one, two, or three weeks of vacation time each year, depending upon years of 
service. Employees earn seven days to six weeks of sick leave each year. Vacation and sick leave cannot 
be accumulated. 

N. Deferred Inflows of Resources 

The Village reports increases in net position that relate to future periods as deferred inflows of resources in 
a separate section of its government-wide and proprietary funds statements of net position. The Village 
will not recognize the related revenues until a future event occurs. The Village reported $2,939 of deferred 
inflows of resources due to the net pension liability. 
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O. Interfund Transactions 

Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are reported 
as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. 
Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures or 
expenses. Reimbursements are when a fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and 
reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. 
Transfers between governmental or enterprise funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the 
government-wide financial statements. 

Resources belonging to particular funds are commonly shared with other funds that need access to 
additional resources. When resources are provided without the expectation of repayment, the transaction is 
reported as a transfer and is treated as a source of income by the recipient fund and as an expenditure by the 
providing fund. 

Activity between funds that is representative of lending or borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end 
of the fiscal year are referred to as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the Fund Financial 
Statements Balance Sheet (Statement C), as well as all other outstanding balances between funds. 

In the process of aggregating data for the Statement of Net Position (Statement A) and the Statement of 
Activities (Statement B), some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the funds were 
eliminated or reclassified. Interfund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the "grossing 
up" effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental activities column. 

P. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures, and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. Ad Valorem Tax 

All ad valorem tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Uncollectible 
amounts due for ad valorem taxes are recognized as bad debts through the establishment of an allowance 
account. Ad valorem taxes are levied on a calendar year basis and become delinquent on December 31. 
The Village bills and collects its own ad valorem taxes. For the 2017 ad valorem taxes, one rate of tax was 
levied on property within the corporate limits, as follows: 

6.90 mills for the general maintenance of the Village 

This millage was approved by the Board of Aldermen on July 11, 2017. This millage is the maximum 
millage that can be assessed without the approval of the voters of the Village. 
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The following entities are the principal taxpayers and related ad valorem tax revenue for the Village: 

WestRock $ 133,439 
Hodge Bank and Trust 4,412 
Kansas City Southem Railroad 2,411 
De Lage Landen Financial Services, Inc. 2,111 
Hodge Shopping Center 661 
Total $ 143.034 

3. Sales Tax 

The qualified electors of the Village of Hodge, under the provisions of Louisiana Revised Statute 47:338.1, 
authorized a one percent sales and use tax levy to be dedicated and used for the purpose of providing 
funding for any lawful corporate purpose of the Village for an undefined period of time. The tax was first 
levied on December 1, 1983. 

4. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 

At June 30, 2018, the Village had cash and cash equivalents (book balances) totaling $421,008, including 
$350 cash on hand. These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these 
deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of 
securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal 
deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. 

At June 30, 2018, the Village had $429,240 in deposits (collected bank balances). These deposits are 
secured from risk by $255,035 federal deposit insurance, and $484,771 of pledged securities held in a 
Federal Reserve pledge account. Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized under 
the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40, Louisiana Revised Statute 30:1229 imposes a statutory 
requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being 
notified that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. Louisiana R.S. 39:1224 
requires bonds, or other such instruments furnished as security, to be deposited with the depositing 
authority or with an unaffiliated bank or trust company. Federal Reserve Bank, or any Federal Home Loan 
Bank or its successor. This security is deemed to be under the control and in the possession of the public 
entity and deemed to be held in its name. The Village of Hodge has complied with these requirements of 
state law. 

Cash and investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the Village at 
June 30, 2018. Deposits are considered to be exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by 
depository insurance and the deposits are (a) uncollateralized, (b) collateralized with securities held by the 
pledging financial institution, or (c) collateralized with securities held by the the pledging financial 
institution's trust department or agent but not in the depositor-government's name. The Village of Hodge 
has cash and cash equivalents that are covered by $255,035 of federal depository insurance. The remaining 
balance is exposed to custodial credit risk because it is uninsured and collateralized with securities held by 
the pledging financial institution. 

At June 30, 2018, the Village had no investments. 
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Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 

5. Receivables 

The receivables of $130,689 at June 30, 2018, are as follows: 

Fund 

General Enterprise Total 

Services $ $ 7,240 $ 7,240 

Franchise fees 442 - 442 

HUOC 36,234 - 36,234 
Sales taxes 86,773 - 86,773 

Total $ 123,449 $ 7,240 $ 130,689 
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Village of Hodge 

Hodge, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 

6. Capital Assets 

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2018, is as follows: 

A. Capital Assets - Governmental Funds 

Balance, July 01, 
Additions Deletions 

Balance, June 30, 
2017 

Additions Deletions 
2018 

Capital assets not depreciated 

Land $ 63,291 $ $ $ 63,291 

Construction in Progress - - - -

Total capital assets not being depreciated 63,291 - - 63,291 

Capital assets being depreciated 

Buildings 246,783 - - 246,783 

Improvements other than buildings 945,444 - - 945,444 

Furniture 39,724 - - 39,724 

Equipment 235,555 33,511 - 269,066 

Vehicles 546,387 - 26,032 520,355 

Total capital assets being depreciated $ 2,013,893 $ 33,511 $ 26,032 $ 2,021,372 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Buildings $ 193,835 $ 2,776 $ $ 196,611 

Improvements other than buildings 522,525 43,989 - 566,514 

Furniture 38,849 228 - 39,077 

Equipment 111,818 19,637 - 131,455 

Vehicles 476,173 23,489 26,032 473,631 

Total accumulated depreciation 1,343,200 90,119 26,032 1,407,288 

Capital assets, net $ 670,693 $ (56,608) $ $ 614,084 

Governmental capital assets - net $ 733,984 $ (56,608) $ $ 677,375 

Functional Allocation of Deoreciation Exoense 

General government $ 3,220 

Fire 10,654 

Police 17,928 

Highways and streets 58,174 

Services to others 142 

Total $ 90,118 
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Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 

B. Capital Assets - Proprietary Funds 

7. Payables 

The payables of $39,027 at June 30, 2018, are as follows: 

Balance, July 01, 
2017 

Additions Deletions 
Balance, June 30, 

2018 

Capital assets being depreciated 

Water System $ 460,936 $ $ $ 460,936 

Sewer System 623,952 - - 623,952 

Machinery and equipment 147,238 29,934 - 177,172 
Total capital assets being 
depreciated 

$ 1,232,126 $ 29,934 $ $ 1,262,060 
Total capital assets being 
depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Water System $ 189,268 $ 15,522 $ $ 204,790 

Sewer System 247,019 24,894 - 271,913 

Machinery and equipment 79,788 16,058 - 95,846 

Total accumulated depreciation $ 516,075 $ 56,474 $ $ 572,549 

Business-type activities capital 
assets, net 

Fur 

$ 716,051 $ (26,540) $ $ 689,511 
Business-type activities capital 
assets, net 

Fur ictional Allocation of Deoreciation Expense 

Water $ 15,522 

Sewer 24,894 

Machinery and equipment 16,058 

Total $ 56,474 

Fund 

General Enterprise Total 

Accounts $ 34,791 $ 1,463 $ 36,254 

Payroll liabilities 2,773 - 2,773 

Total $ 37,564 $ 1,463 $ 39,027 
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Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 

8. Retirement Systems 

A. Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) 

Plan Description 

The Village of Hodge contributes to the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) 
which is a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan. The System is composed of two 
distinct plans. Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit provisions. All employees of the 
municipality are members of Plan B. 

All permanent employees working at least 35 hours per week who are not covered by another pension plan 
and are paid wholly or in part from municipal funds and all elected municipal officials are eligible to 
participate in the System. 

Any member of Plan B who was hired before January 1, 2013, can retire providing the member meets one 
of the following criteria: 

1. Any age with 30 years of creditable service. 

2. Age 60 with a minimum of ten or more years of creditable service. 

3. Any age with ten years of creditable service eligible for disability benefits. 

4. Survivor's benefits require five years creditable service at death of member. 

Eligibility for retirement for Plan B members hired on or after January 1, 2013 is as follows: 

1. Age 67 with seven or more years of creditable service. 

2. Age 62 with ten or more years of creditable service. 

3. Age 55 with thirty or more years of creditable service. 
4. Any age with twenty five years of creditable service, exclusive of military service and unused side 
leave. However, any member retiring under this subsection shall have their benefit actuarially reduced 
from the earliest age of which the member would be entitled to a vested deferred benefit under any 
provision of this section, if the member had continued in service to that age. 

Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement shall consist of an amount equal to 2% of the employee's 
final compensation multiplied by his or her years of creditable service. However, under certain conditions 
as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited to specified amounts. The System also provides death 
and disability benefits. Benefits are established or amended by state statute. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Village of Hodge's total payroll for all employees was $548,765. 
Total covered payroll was $49,632. Covered payroll refers to all compensation paid by the Village of 
Hodge to active employees covered by the Plan. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the System. The report may be obtained by writing to the 
Municipal Employees Retirement System of Louisiana, 7937 Office Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, 
Louisiana 70809, or by calling (225) 925-4810, or by visiting the System's website www.mersla.com. 
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Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Contributions 

According to state statute, contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined each year. 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the actual employer contribution rate was 13.25% for Plan B, actuarially 
determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs 
of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded 
accrued liability. In accordance with state statute, the System receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue 
sharing funds. These additional sources of income are used as employer contributions and are considered 
support from non-employer contributing entities, but are not considered special funding situations. 

Under Plan B, members are required by state statute to contribute 5.00% of their annual covered salary. 
The contributions are deducted from the employee's wages or salary and remitted by the Village of Hodge 
to the System monthly. The Village of Hodge's contributions to the System under Plan B for the year 
ending June 30, 2018 were $4,338. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2018, the Village reported a liability of $57,860 for its proportionate share of the Net Pension 
Liability. The Net Pension Liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used 
to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Village 
of Hodge's proportion of the Net Pension Liability was based on a projection of the Village of Hodge's 
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the Village of Hodge's proportion was 
0.066872%, which was an increase of 0.004720% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Village of Hodge recognized the system pension expense of $11,787 
plus employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions, which was ($10,942). Total pension expense for the 
Village was $845. 
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At June 30, 2018, the Village of Hodge reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 

Changes in assumption 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan 
Changes in employer's proportion of beginning net 
pension liability 
Differences between employer and proportionate share of 
contributions 

Contributions after the measurement period 

Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources 

$ 303 $ 1,256 

2,546 -

12,189 -

2,087 1,683 

6,599 

$ 23,724 $ 2,939 

The $6,599 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Village of Hodge 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase of Net Pension 
Liability in the year ended June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30: 

2019 $ 5,196 

2020 5,196 

2021 5,196 

2022 5,196 
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A ctuarial Assumptions 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as of 
June 30, 2017, are as follows: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2017 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Investment Rate of Return 7.400% 

Inflation Rate 2.775% 

Projected Salary Increases (including 
inflation and merit increases) 

5.000% 

Annuitant and beneficiary mortality 

For annuitant and beneficiary mortality tables used were: 
RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant Sex Distinct Mortality Tables 
set forward 2 years for males and set forward 1 year for 
females projected to 2028 using scale AA. 

Employee mortality 
For employees, the RP-2000 Disabled Lives Mortality 
Table set back 2 years for both males and females. 

Disabled lives mortality 
For disabled Annuitants, RP-2000 Disabled Lives Mortality 
Table set back 5 years for males and set back 3 years for 
females. 

Expected Remaining Service Lives 4 years for Plan B 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of 
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and an adjustment for the 
effect of rebalancing/diversification. 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the System's target 
asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 

Public equity 

Public fixed income 

Alternatives 

Totals 

Target Allocation 

50% 

15% 

35% 

100% 

Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

2.30% 

1.60% 

0.70% 

4.60% 

Inflation 

Expected arithmetic nominal return 

2.60% 

7.20% 
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Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.4%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution 
rate and that contributions from employers will be made at contractually required rates, actuarially 
determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payment to 
determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Village of Hodge's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

The following presents the Village of Hodge's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.4%, as well as what the Village of Hodge's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower 
(6.4%) or one percentage-point higher (8.4%) than the current rate: 

1.0% Decrease Current Discount 1.0% Increase 
(6.4%) Rate (7.4%) (8.4%) 

Employer's proportionate share ^ ^ ^ ^ 
of net pension liability 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the Plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued Municipal 
Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana Audit Report at www.mersla.com. 

9. Long-Term Obligations 

The following is a summary of the long-term obligation transactions for the year ended June 30, 2018: 

T X 11- X- Balance, .jj-.- Balance, 
Long-term obligation QJ 2017 June 30,2018 

Net pension liability $ 51,518$ 6,343 $ -$ 57,861 

Total $ 51,518 $ 6,343 $ - $ 57,861 

The following is a summary of the current (due in one year or less) and the long-term (due in more than one 
year) portions of long-term obligations as of the year ended June 30, 2018: 

Long-term obligation Current portion Long-term portion Total 

Net pension liability $ -$ 57,861 $ 57,861 

Total $ -$ 57,861 $ 57,861 
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10. Related Party Transactions 

The Mayor and the Mayor Pro-Tem serve on the Board of Directors of the Hodge Utility Operating 
Company (HUGO) along with six members appointed by RockTenn. HUGO operates and manages the 
water, sewerage, and electric generating facilities owned by the Village of Hodge Combined Utility System 
(another related party). HUOC is considered to be a related party, and during the year ended June 30, 2018, 
fees for services rendered were received in the Village's General Fund from HUOC in the amount of 
$149,026 and expenses paid from the Village's General Fund to HUOC were $122,794. Expenses paid to 
HUOC for the Village's utilities were $2,550. 

The Village provides various services to HUOC during the year, including the billing and collecting of 
electricity generated by HUOC for the Village's water and sewer customers. The amounts collected by the 
Village for HUOC are remitted to HUOC once a week. At June 30, 2018, the amont due to HUOC of $173 
were monies collected for HUGC that were not remitted before the end of the fiscal year. 

11. Grants 

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Village of Hodge received total grant income of $159,073. The 
fire department received $3,613 from the Louisiana Department of Agriculture and Forestry (Volunteer Fire 
Assistance grant) that was used to purchase a thermal imager and a gas fan for the fire department. The 
total cost for the fire department was $7,225, and the Village paid the difference from the grant amount 
awarded. The Jackson Parish Police Jury granted the Village $7,500 to use for operational expenditures. 
The street department received $132,760 and the rights to a portion of state route LA 813-3 from the 
Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development. The funds are to be used to make repairs to the 
road transfered to the Village. Lastly, the Village received a USDA grant of 15,200. This grant was used 
to purchase tasers for the police department, a mower for the streets department, and a dump trailer for the 
sanitation department. 

12. Risk Management and Economic Dependency 

The Village is exposed to various risk of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to, and destruction of assets, 
errors and omissions, and injuries to employees. To handle such risk of loss, the Village maintains 
commercial insurance policies covering automobile liability and uninsured motorist, surety bond coverage, 
flood insurance, and property insurance. In addition to the above policies, the Village maintains a general 
liability policy and an errors and omissions policy. No claims were paid on any of the policies during the 
past three years, which exceeded the policies' coverage amount. 

The Village is economically dependent upon WestRock Company, which provides the majority of property 
tax and sales and use tax revenue for the Village. There were no receivables at June 30, 2018, due from 
WestRock Company. 

13. Litigation and Claims 

At June 30, 2018, the Village was not involved in any lawsuits nor is aware of any outstanding claims, 
which are not covered by insurance. 
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14. Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were available 
to be issued, November 2, 2018, and determined that no events occurred that require disclosure. No 
subsequent events occurring after this date have been evaluated for inclusion in these financial statements. 
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Schedule 1 

Village of Hodge 

Hodge, Louisiana 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Budget -
Original/Final 

Actual 
Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues 

Taxes: 

Ad valorem tax $ 130,000 $ 154,321 $ 24,321 

Franchise tax 2,750 2,469 (281) 

Sales tax 470,000 419,510 (50,490) 

Licenses and permits 19,000 21,142 2,142 

Capital grant - 16,698 16,698 

Operating grant - 140,260 140,260 

Intergovernmental 23,900 26,698 2,798 

Fines, forfeitures, and court costs 80,000 113,028 33,028 

Rent, royalty, and commission - 286 286 

Charges for services 73,100 159,063 85,963 

Miscellaneous 2,500 11,844 9,344 

Total revenues 801,250 1,065,319 264,069 

Expenditures 

Current: 

General government 272,000 199,961 72,039 

Public safety 

Police 196,990 220,872 (23,882) 

Fire 24,100 23,384 716 

Streets 247,500 323,447 (75,947) 

Sanitation 4,000 - 4,000 

Services to related party 71,100 122,794 (51,694) 

Capital outlay 95,000 33,511 61,489 

Total expenditures 910,690 923,969 (13,279) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

(109,440) 141,350 250,790 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Schedule 1 

Village of Hodge 

Hodge, Louisiana 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Interest earnings 

Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 

Operating transfers 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net changes in fund balances 

Fund balances - June 30, 2017 

Fund balances - June 30, 2018 

200 

200 

(109,240) 

112,905 

100 

1,741 

46,932 

48,773 

190,123 

95,977 

(100) 

1,741 

46,932 

48,573 

299,363 

(16,928) 

3,665 $ 286,100 $ 282,435 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

NOTE 1 - BUDGETARY POLICIES 

A proposed budget for the general fund of the Village of Hodge is prepared on the cash basis of accounting. 
The budget is legally adopted by the Village of Hodge and then amended during the year, as necessary. The 
budget is established and controlled at the object level of expenditures. Appropriations lapse at year-end and 
must be reappropriated for the following year to be expended. The Village of Hodge authorizes all 
amendments to the budget. There were no amendments made to the original budget. 

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year. 



Kenneth D. Folden & Co. 
Kenneth D. Folden, CPA Certified Public Accountants Ted W. Sanderlin, CPA 

Members 302 Eighth Street Members 
Society of Louisiana Jonesboro, LA 71251 American Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants (318) 259-7316 Certified Public Accountants 
email: kfolden@foldencpa.com FAX (318) 259-7315 email: tsanderlin@foldencpa.com 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and 

Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 

Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each 
major fund of the Village of Hodge, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village of Hodge's basic financial statements and have 
issued our report thereon dated November 2, 2018. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Village of Hodge's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of Hodge's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of Hodge's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might 
be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Village of Hodge's financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the Village of Hodge's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Jonesboro, Louisiana 
November 2, 2018 
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Schedule 2 

Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Village of Hodge as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2018 and have issued our report thereon dated November 2, 2018. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Our audit of the financial statements as of June 30, 2018 resulted in an unqualified opinion. 

A. Summary of Auditor's Report 

Report on Internal Control and Compliance Material to Financial Statements 

Internal Control 

Material Weakness Yes X No Significant Deficiencies Yes X No 

Compliance 

Compliance Material to Financial Statements Yes X No 

B. Findings - Financial Statements Audit 

Current Y ear 

No current year findings. 

Prior Year 

No prior year findings. 
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Schedule 3 

Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Schedule of Compensation Paid Aldermen 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Wayne T. Buchan 

Steve H. Fox 

Willard Willis 

2018 

5,450 

5,450 

5,450 

16,350 
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Schedule 4 

Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Gerald Palmer 

Mayor 

Salary 

Benefits - Retirement 

21,100 

2,783 

23,883 
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Schedule 5 

Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Liability 
Municipal Employees Retirement System 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

2018 2017 2016 2015 

Employer's proportion of the net pension 
liability (asset) 

0.066872% 0.062152% 0.068116% 0.068791% 

Employer's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) 57,860 51,518 46,295 32,297 

Employer's covered employee payroll 49,632 45,663 47,260 46,662 

Employer's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its 116.58% 112.82% 97.96 % 69.22 % 
covered employee payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
63.49 % 63.34% 66.18% 76.94 % 

The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become 
available. 
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Schedule 6 

Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 
Municipal Employees Retirement System 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Contracturally required contribution 
Contributions in relation to contractually 
required contribution 
Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Employer's covered payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered 
employee payroll 

2018 2017 2016 2015 

$ 6,599 $ 5,460 $ 4,338 $ 4,490 

6,599 5,460 4,338 4,490 

$ 49,800 $ 49,632 $ 45,663 $ 47,260 

13.25% 11.00% 9.50% 9.50% 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become 
available. 
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Independent Accountant's Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

To the Board of Aldermen of Village of Hodge 
Hodge, Louisiana 
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the Village of Hodge and 
the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified in the LLA's 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period July 01, 2017 through June 30, 2018. The 
Village's management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established 
by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing 
Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of this 
report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described 
below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

Written Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain the entity's written policies and procedures and report whether those written policies and 
procedures address each of the following financial/business functions (or report that the entity does not 
have any written policies and procedures), as applicable: 

a. Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget, 

b. Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor list; (3) 
the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) controls to ensure 
compliance with the public bid law; and (5) documentation required to be maintained for all bids and 
price quotes. 

c. Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving, 

d. Receipts, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and procedures should 
include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or 
agency fund additions. 

e. Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, 

f. Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process, 

g. Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards are to be 
controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers, and (5) 
monitoring card usage, 

h. Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by category 
of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers. 
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i. Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-1121, (2) actions 
to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) 
requirement that all employees, including elected officials, annually attest through signature verification 
that they have read the entity's ethics policy, and 

j. Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

Exception: The Village does not have written policies and procedures on debt service. The ethics policy 
adopted by the Village does not include specific statutes and annual attestation of the ethics policy. 

Management's Response: The Village will develop written policies and procedures on debt service and will 
include the prohibitions of Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-1121 and annual attestation in the existing 
ethics policy. 

Board 

2. Obtain and review the board/committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's enabling 
legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and: 

a. Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency in 
accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent document. 

Response: The Board of Aldermen met monthly with a quorum. 

b. For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe that the minutes 
referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund and major special 
revenue funds, as well as monthly financial statements (or budget-to-actual comparisons, if budgeted) for 
major proprietary funds. 

Response: The Board of Aldermen approves bills monthly, but there is no reference in the minutes to 
budget-to-actual comparisons. The Aldermen are given budget-to-actual comparisons monthly to 
review. 

c. For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unrestricted fund balance 
in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unrestricted fund balance in the prior year 
audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period referenced or 
included a formal plan to eliminate the negative unrestricted fund balance in the general fund. 

Response: The Village did not have a negative ending unrestricted fund balance. 

Exception: See above responses. 

Management's Response: Management will include a reference in the meeting minutes to the budget-to-
actual comparisons report given to and reviewed by the Board of Aldermen at monthly meetings. 

Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing of client bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating account. 
Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all accounts if less 
than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank 
statement and reconciliation for selected each account, and observe that: 

Response: Management provided us with a list of bank accounts and representation that the list is 
complete. 

a. Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related statement 
closing date (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); 
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Response: Reconciliations were completed within 2 months of statement closing date. 

b. Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who does not 
handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation (e.g., initialed and dated, 
electronically logged); and 

Response: Reconciliations were reviewed by Mayor, but the Mayor has signatory authority. 

c. Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

Response: Out of 6 six accounts reviewed, 3 accounts had reconciling items that were outstanding for 
more than 12 months. 

Exception: See above responses. 

Management's Response: Each of the reconciliations will be reviewed by an Alderman as indicated by 
initials and a date of review. The Village Clerk will research the transactions over 12 months old, and the 
Village Clerk will monitor the reconciliation each month for any items that become more than 12 months 
old. 

Collections 

4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders (cash) 
are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit sites 
(or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

Response: Management provided us with a list of deposit sites and representation that the list is complete. 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e. 5 collection 
locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to employee job 
duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties) at each collection 
location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

Response: Management provided us with a list of collection locations and representation that the list is 
complete. There were no written employee job duties, but we inquired of employees their job duties. Job 
duties are properly segregated. 

a. Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

Response: Clerk and Assistant Clerk share cash drawer. Assistant Clerk is primarily responsible for 
taking deposits. 

b. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making bank deposits, 
unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation (e.g. pre-
numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

Response: Clerk can collect cash and is responsible for preparing bank deposits. 

c. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection entries to the 
general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling ledger 
postings to each other and to the deposit. 

Response: Clerk can collect cash and is responsible for posting collection entries to the general ledger. 

d. The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary 
ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions are not responsible for collecting cash, unless 
another employee verifies the reconciliation. 

Response: Clerk can collect cash and is responsible for reconciling the cash accounts monthly. 



6. Inquire of management that all employees who have access to cash are covered by a bond or insurance 
policy for theft. 

Response: Each employee who has access to cash is covered by a bond. 

7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 under 
"Bank Reconciliations" above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the 
dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). 
Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

a. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

b. Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection documentation 
to the deposit slip. 

c. Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

d. Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location (within 
one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit is less than 
$100). 

e. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

Response: There were no exceptions to the deposit review. 

Exception: See above responses. 

Management's Response: The Village will develop a written job duties for the employees responsible for 
collection, depositing, and reconciling cash. The written job duties will clearly define segregation of duties 
to insure that cash collections are complete and accurate. 

Disbursements - General 

8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

Response: Management provided a listing of locations that process payments and representation that the 
listing is complete. 

9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with non-payroll 
purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties 
(if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties), and 
observe that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

a. At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and placing 
an order/making the purchase. 

Response: All employees can make purchase requests, and the Mayor approves purchase 
requests/orders. The Mayor cannot initiate a purchase request, and no other employee can approve a 
purchase request/order. 

b. At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

Response: Payments to vendors are processed by the Clerk or the Assistant Clerk through QuickBooks. 
The Mayor approves the payment to vendors. The Board of Aldermen review and approve all payments 
to vendors at the monthly meetings. 

c. The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor files, 
unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 
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Response: The Clerk adds vendors and processes payments; however, the Mayor and an Alderman must 
approve the purchase order form and confirm by signature that the vendor has been approved. 

d. Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

Response: The Clerk or the Assistant Clerk mails payments, and both can process payments. 

10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement transaction 
population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's representation that the 
population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, obtain supporting 
documentation for each transaction and: 

Response: Management provided the disbursement transaction population and representation that the 
population is complete. 

a. Observe that the disbursement matched the related original invoice/billing statement. 

Response: All 29 disbursements selected matched the related original invoice/billing statement. 

b. Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electronic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

Response: Of the 29 disbursements selected, seven disbursements did not have a purchase request or 
purchase order. The Village implemented the purchase request/order requirement during the audit 
period, so it was not in place for the entire year. Three of the seven disbursements were to HUOC and 
do not require a purchase order (utility payments to a related party). 

Exception: See above responses. 

Management's Response: Management will review the disbursements procedures to insure that the 
employee responsible for signing checks mails the payments or another employee who does not have the 
responsibility for processing payments mails the payments. 

Credit Cards 

11. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards 
(cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained 
possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. 

Response: Management provided a listing of credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards and 
representation that the listing is completed. 

12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that 
were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each 
card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, and: 

a. Observe that there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and supporting 
documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports for excessive fuel 
card usage) was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the authorized card holder. 

Response: Three cards were tested and no statement was approved by someone other than the 
authorized card holder. 

b. Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

Response: There were no finance charges or late fees on any of the selected statements. 

13. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding fuel cards, 
randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and obtain 
supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e. each card should have 10 transactions subject to testing). 
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a. For each transaction, observe that it is supported by: 

i. An original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, 

Response: For each of the statements, all invoices were available and identified precisely what was 
purchased. 

ii. Written documentation of the business/public purpose, and 

Response: All transactions had documentation of the business/public purpose. 

iii. Documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). 

Response: No transactions were for meal charges. 

Exception: See above responses. 

Management's Response: The Village will amend its written policy and procedures on credit card 
purchases to insure that all statements and supporting documentation are approved, in writing, by someone 
other than the authorized card holder. 

Travel and Expense Reimbursement 

14. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly 
select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense documentation 
of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of the 5 
reimbursements selected: 

Response: Management provided a listing of travel and related expense reimbursements and 
representation that the listing is complete. 

a. If reimbursed using a per diem, agree the reimbursement rate to those rates established either by the 
State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration (www.gsa.gov). 

Response: There were no per diem reimbursements. 

b. If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original itemized 
receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

Response: Reimbursements were for actual costs, and actual costs were supported by an original 
itemized receipt. 

c. Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose (for 
meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals participating) and 
other documentation required by written policy (procedure #lh). 

Response: Two of the four reimbursements did not list the business/public purpose or individuals 
participating in meals. No other documentation is required. 

d. Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the 
person receiving reimbursement. 

Response: Each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the 
person receiving the reimbursement. 

Exception: See above responses. 

Management's Response: The Village will review the travel and expense reimbursement policy with 
employees to insure that the business/public purpose and individuals participating in meals is documented. 
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Contracts 

15. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and 
supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. 
Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. Obtain 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if 
less than 5) from the listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and: 

Response: Management provided representation that no new contracts were initiated or renewed during 
the fiscal period. 

a. Observe that the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., solicited 
quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

b. Observe that the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy or law 
(e.g. Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

c. If the contract was amended (e.g. change order), observe that the original contract terms provided for 
such an amendment. 

d. Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the supporting 
invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice and related payment agreed 
to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Exception: None. 

Management's Response: None. 

Payroll and Personnel 

16. Obtain a listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees/officials, obtain related paid 
salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

Response: Management provided a listing of employees/elected officials and representation that the 
listing is complete. 

17. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees/officials selected under 
#16 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and: 

a. Observe that all selected employees/officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., 
vacation, sick, compensatory). 

Response: All employees selected documented their daily attendance, but no employees documented 
their leave. 

b. Observe that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees/officials. 

Response: All employees had daily attendance documentation approved by supervisors. Employees did 
not document leave. 

c. Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's cumulative 
leave records. 

Response: The Village did not maintain leave documentation for employees. 

18. Obtain a listing of those employees/officials that received termination payments during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two 
employees/officials, obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's 
termination payment calculations, agree the hours to the employee/officials' cumulate leave records, and 
agree the pay rates to the employee/officials' authorized pay rates in the employee/officials' personnel files. 



Response: Two employees were terminated and attendance/leave documentation showed leave amount 
due to employees. Termination payments were in agreement with leave records and pay rates. 

19. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, retirement 
contributions, health insurance premiums, and workers' compensation premiums have been paid, and 
associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

Response: Management provided representation that employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, 
retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, and workers' compensation premiums have been 
paid, and associated forms have been filed by required deadlines. 

Exception: See above responses. 

Management's Response: The Village will modify the written payroll and personnel policy and procedures, 
including a formal pay rate structure, leave (vacation/sick time) policy and procedure, and termination 
procedures. The Village will develop and maintain leave records for all employees. 

Ethics 

20. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under "Payroll and Personnel" 
above, obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

a. Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour of ethics 
training during the fiscal period. 

Response: Ethics training was completed by four of the five employees selected. The employee that 
had not completed ethics training is a new employee. 

b. Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official attested through signature 
verification that he or she has read the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period. 

Response: There is no documentation that the employees have read the entity's ethics policy during the 
fiscal period. 

Exception: See above responses. 

Management's Response: The Village will have all employees complete the one hour ethics training 
available to all governmental entities as part of the employees' orientation to working for the Village. 
Records of this training will be kept in the personnel files. The Village has documentation that all 
employees have read the entity's ethics policy in July of 2018, with signature verification in the personnel 
files of each employee. 

Debt Service 

21. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes issued during the fiscal period and management's representation that the 
listing is complete. Select all bonds/notes on the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that 
State Bond Commission approval was obtained for each bond/note issued. 

Response: Management has provided representation that no bonds/notes were issued during the fiscal 
period. 

22. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, obtain 
supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve balances and 
payments to those required by debt covenants. 

Response: Management has provided representation that no bonds/notes were outstanding during the 
fiscal period. 
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other 

23. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, obtain 
supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the legislative 
auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled. 

Response: Management has provided representation that there were no misappropriations of public funds 
and assets during the fiscal period. 

24. Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

Response: We observed the notice posted in the Village Hall. 

We were not engaged to and did not perform an examination or review, the objective of which would be the 
expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, 
other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in 
the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this 
report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Jonesboro, Louisiana 
November 2, 2018 



(318) 259-4704 - PH 
(318) 259-6670 - FAX 

4693 QUITMAN HWY. 
P.O. BOX 280 

HODGE, LA 71 247 

GERALD T. PALMER 
MAYOR 

November 2, 2018 

Kenneth D. Folden & Co., CPAs 
302 Eighth Street 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

In connection with your engagement to apply agreed-upon procedures to certain control and 
compliance (C/C) areas identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Statewide Agreed-Upon 
Procedures (SAUPs), for the fiscal period July 1. 2017 throush June 30, 2018, we confirm to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you during your 
engagement. 

1. We are responsible for the C/C areas identified in the SAUPs, including written policies 
and procedures; board or finance committee; bank reconciliations; collections; non-payroll 
disbursements; credit/debit/fuel/purchasing cards; travel and travel-related expense 
reimbursement; contracts; payroll and personnel; ethics; debt service; and other areas as 
applicable. 

Yes No • 

2. For the fiscal period July J, 2017 through June 30, 2018. the C/C areas were administered 
in accordance with the best practice criteria presented in the SAUPs. 

Yes 0^No • 

3. We are responsible for selecting the criteria and procedures and for determining that such 
criteria and procedures are appropriate for our purposes. 

Yes 0^ No • 

4. We have disclosed to you all known matters contradicting the results of the procedures 
performed in C/C areas. 

Yes No • 
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5. We have disclosed to you any communications from regulatory agencies, internal auditors, 
other independent practitioners or consultants, and others affecting the C/C areas, including 
communications received betv^een June 30, 2018. and November 2. 2018. 

Yes 0^ No • 

6. We have provided you with access to all records that we believe are relevant to the C/C 
areas and the agreed-upon procedures. 

Yes 0^ No • 

7. We represent that the listing of bank accounts for the fiscal period that we provided to you 
is complete. We also represent that we have identified and disclosed to you our main 
operating account. 

Yes 0^ No • 

8. We represent that the listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period that we provided to you is 
complete. 

Yes ^ No • 

9. We represent that the listing of collection locations for the fiscal period that we provided 
to you is complete. 

Yes No • 

10. We represent that the listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period that 
we provided to you is complete. 

Yes No • 

11. We represent that the non-payroll disbursement transaction population for each location 
that processes payments for the fiscal period that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes 0^ No • 

12. We represent that the listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-
cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons 
who maintained possession of the cards, that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes No • 
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13. We represent that the listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during 
the fiscal period that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes No • 

14. We represent that the listing of all agreements/contracts (or active vendors) for professional 
services, materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or 
renewed during the fiscal period that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes 0^ No • 

15. We represent that the listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal 
period that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes No • 

16. We represent that the listing of employees/officials that received termination payments 
during the fiscal period that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes 03^ No • 

17. We represent that the employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, retirement 
contributions, health insurance premiums, and workers' compensation premiums have 
been paid, and associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines during the fiscal 
period. 

Yes 0^ No • 

18. We represent that the listing of bonds/notes issued during the fiscal period that we provided 
to you is complete. 

Yes No • 

19. We represent that the listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period that 
we provided to you is complete. 

Yes 0^ No • 

20. We represent that the listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the 
fiscal period that we provided to you is complete. 

Yes 0^ No • 
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22. We have responded fully to all inquiries made by you during the engagement. 

Yes No • 

23. We are not aware of any events that have occurred subsequent to June 30. 2018, that would 
require adjustment to or modification of the results of the agreed-upon procedures. 

Yes 0^ No • 

The previous responses have been made to the best of our belief and knowledge. 

Date November 2,2018 Signature 

Title Mayor 

Signature CL Date November 2,2018 

Title Clerk 
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